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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Burger King India Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Burger King India Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2020, its loss including other comprehensive expense, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 45 of the Ind AS financial statements, which describes the
Management's assessment of impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materialily
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
ears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
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there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeqguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we

ﬁ are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
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» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained; whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

. (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of

/’461516%\ the Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating
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(9) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF BURGER KING INDIA LIMITED

®

@D

(a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assts have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there
is a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit
procedures performed by us, there are no immovable properties, included in property, plant
and equipment of the company and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)c) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by

(iv)

)

(vi)

us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (¢) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees and securities given in respect of which provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
products/services of the Company.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, duty of

customs, profession tax, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed
by us, there are no undisputed dues in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues which were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, Goods and Services Tax, customs duty and cess which have not been deposited on

account of any dispute.

(viii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,

the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution,
ank or government or dues to debenture holders.
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(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

xiv)

xv)

xvi)

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public
offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause
(ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no material fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the vear.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit
procedures performed by us, the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of sec 177 are not
applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates
to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company
and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BURGER KING INDIA LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Burger King India Limited
(“the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controis

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company'’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To These
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To
These Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements, inciuding the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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Partner
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Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2020



Burger King India Limited {formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited')
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31 2019 April 1, 2018
Notes INR in Millians INR in Millions INR in Millions
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 4,742.33 3,475.38 2,401.61
Right-of-use assets 4 5,379.50 4,292.25 3,433.47
Capital work-in-progress 475,63 202.38 103.18
Intangible assets 5 245.01 157.92 87.98
Financial assets
(a) Loans 6 290.95 213.08 i61.40
(b) Others financial assets 7 0.87 0.62 0.30
Income tax assets {net) 10.43 8.16 599
Other non-current assets 8 33.13 39.45 1893
11,177.85 8,389.24 6,212.86
Current assets
Inventories 9 94.34 68.56 51,88
Financial assets
(a] Investments 10 185.76 384.14 868.92
(b} Trade and other receivables 11 32.20 58.98 25.85
(c} Cash and cash equivalents 12 40.54 158.55 72.04
{d) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 239.90 1.61 1.86
{e) Other financial assets 14 1231 29.69 13.32
Other current assets 15 194.17 113.95 56.82
799.22 815.48 1,090.69
Total Assets 11,977.07 9,204.72 7,303.55
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share capital 16 2,777.42 2,650.00 2,650.00
Other equity 17 (23.16) 1153.53) 221.31
Total Equity 2,754,26 2,496.47 2,871.31
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a} Borrowings 18 1,787.87
{b) Lease Liabilities 42 5,665.48 4,508.38 3,522.84
Provisions 19 187.28 51.78 33.24
Other non-current liabilities 20 8.16 7.86 7.33
7,648.79 4,568.02 3,563.41
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings 18 197.29 1,000.00
{b) Trade payables
(i) Micro and small enterprises 21 5.35
(i) Others 21 810.67 608.00 43411
(c) Lease liabilities 42 311.99 231.82 177.40
(d) Other financial liabitities 22 153.51 222.15 157.39
Provisions 19 32.88 23.81 17.03
Other current liabilities 23 62.33 53.45 82.90
1,574.02 2,140.23 868.83
Total Equity and Liabilities 11,977.07 9,204.72 7,303.55
Summary of Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanvying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Burger King India Limited
Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 ~
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Surnit Zaveri
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2020

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2020



Burger King india Limited (formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited" }
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

For the year ended For the year ended
Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
INR in Millions INR in Millions

Income

Revenue from operations 24 8,412.38 6,327.35

Other income 25 55.91 113.95
Total Income 8,468.29 6,441.30
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 26 3,014.90 2,300.84

Employee benefits expenses 27 1,365.03 968.59

Finance costs 28 654,53 464,50

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 29 1,163.74 822.10

Other expenses 30 2,992.34 2,268.06
Total Expenses 9,190.54 6,824.09
Loss before exceptional items and tax (722.25) (382.79)
Exceptional items 44 43.45 -
Loss before tax (765.70) (382.79)
Tax expenses

Current tax 31 -

Deferred tax 31
Loss for the year (765.70) [382.79
Other Comprehensive loss N

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Re-measurement (expense)/gains on defined benefit plans 33 (10.11) (2.71)

Income tax on above 31
Total other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (10.11) (2.71)
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (775.81) (385.50)
Earnings per equity share
Face value of Rs. 10 each
Basic and Diluted (in INR) 32 {2.87) (1.44)
Summary of Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC& COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Burger King India Limited
Firm Registration Number: 324582E/E300003 ~ T. —=
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per Ravi Bansal Rajsev Varman Shivakumar Pullaya Dega Tara Subramaniam
Partner I [ MU!VIBA * Direltor & Director Director
Chief Executive #ificer
Membership No : 49365 _,/V‘ DIN: 03576355 DIN: 00364444 DIN: 07654007
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Sumit Zaveri

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2020 Date: September 28, 2020
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Burger King India Limited {formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2020

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation on Right of use assets
Assets written off (Refer Note 30{ii))
Interest Income on fixed deposits
Provisions written back

Provision for doubtful debts

Gain on termination of lease

Gain on remeasurement of lease
Finance cost

Employee stock cc ion exp
Notional interest on interest free security deposit

Profit on sale of Current investments (including MTM impact)

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital
Increase in financial assets

Increase in other non-current assets
Decrease in Other Current Assets
Increase in inventories

(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables
Increase in trade payables

Increase in provisions

Increase / {Decrease) in Other Liabilities
Cash generated in operations

Direct taxes paid {net of refunds)

Net cash flow generated from operating activities {A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, including Right-of-use assets, CWIP and capital advances*
Purchase of Current Investments

Proceeds from sale of Current Investments (net)

(Investment) / Redemption in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months){net)

Interest received on Fixed deposit
Increase/ {decrease) in non- current bank deposits
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B}

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Proceeds from issue of CCPS

Payment of interest on term loan

Payments of principal portion iease liabilities
Payments of interest portion lease liabilities
Net Cash flows from financing activities (C)

Net increase/ {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Netincrease/ {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

With banks in current account

Cash and cash equivalents as per note 12

Total Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement
Figures in brackets indicate outflows

*Refer Note 42 -Leases regarding non-cash adjustment relating to leases.

Summary of Significant accounting policies
notes are an intetral part of the financial statements

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2019 March 31, 2018
INR in Mitlions INR in Millions

For the year ended

___March 31 2020
INR in Millions

(775.81) {385.50) {814.16)
623.05 394.77 307.46
540.69 427.33 332.90
6.86 112 6.16
(1.74) 10.22) 10.20)
(1.09) {64.92) -
263
(9.43) -
{14.15)
654.53 464.50 369.37
27.05 7.80 8.40
{17.66) (16.37) {13.06)
. 120.71) 29.90] 89.66
1,021.62 801.24 107.21
(60.20) {35.31) {36.75)
111.82) {0.43)
(62.85) {30.70) (14.64)
(25.78) (16.68) {11.90)
2678 (33.13) {11.69)
206.51 196.98 239.28
26.04 14.55 9.06
9.18 28.92 27.88
1,129.47 867.60 308.45
o 227) [2.17 13.55]
B 112720 865.43 304.90
(2,275.25) (1,654.47) {865.54)
{725.63) (1,659.62) {719.80)
934.73 2,174.31 1,713.18
{238.28) 0.25 (0.63)
0.45 0.23 0.10
0.25| 0.32 054
12,304.23) [1139.67) 127.85
2,007.2¢ -
1,000.00
(52.93) -
(310,01) (277.29) {117.79)
= [585.33) 462.01! 1366.51)
) 1059.02 360.70 484,30
(118.01) 86.51 [51.55)
158.55 72.04 12359
o 4054 158.55 o 72.04
1118.01) 86.51 {51.55)
15.96 39.88 22.55
_ 24,58 118.67 49.49
40.54 158,55 72.04
40.54 158,55 72,04
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 1
Corporate information

Burger King India Limited ("the Company") is a company incorporated on November 11, 2013. The Company is into
the business of Quick Service Restaurants under the brand name of "Burger King". The Company is a subsidiary of
QSR Asia Pte. Ltd.

The Company has converted from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited Company, pursuant to a special
resolution passed in the extraordinary general meeting of the Shareholders of the Company held on September 13,
2019. Consequently, the name of the Company has changed to Burger King India Limited pursuant to a fresh
certificate of incorporation issued by the ROC on September 25, 2019,

The registered office of the Company is located at office no. 1003 to 1007, B wing, 10%" floor, Mittal Commercia, Asan
Pada Road, Chimatpada, Marol, Andheri {East), Mumbai - 400059. As on March 31, 2020, the Company had 252
Company-operated restaurants and 8 sub-franchisee restaurants located across different cities of India.

The Board of directors approved the financial statements for issue on September 28, 2020.

Note 2
Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule mn),
as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities,
which have been measured at fair value:

¢ Certain financial assets measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

* Share based payments

The financial statements are presented in "INR" and all values are stated as INR million, except when otherwise
indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

f

after the reporting period




Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Aliability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ("INR"), which is also the Company’s functional

currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency using spot rates at the
date; the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit or loss as expense or income in the

year in which they occur or arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

c. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lia bility takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability or,

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 3 market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are

available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

u.'TBt}-;\ervabIe inputs.



Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:
* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
* Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable
* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hiera rchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative
instruments and investment in mutual fund measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as
assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required
to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to

contracts and other relevant documents.
d. Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenues from contracts with customers are recognised when the performance obligations towards customer when
control has been transferred at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods. The Company acts as the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is
the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and

credit risks.

An entity collects Goods and Services Tax {“GST”) on behalf of the government and not on its own account. Hence, it
should be excluded from revenue, i.e. revenue should be net of GST.

Sale of goods
The Company recognises revenue from sale of food through Company’s owned stores and are recognised when the

items are delivered to or carried out by customers.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when Company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

Income from sub-franchisee operations

Sub-Franchisee income includes onetime initial fees and royalty income on sales. One time initial fees are non-

refundable and are recognised over the term of contract. Rovyalty income is recognised on accrual basis based on the

terms ome agreement over a period of time.
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King india Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
("EIR"), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

Areceivable represents the Company'’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional {i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in
section (n) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract.

e. Taxes
Tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961. The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated based on
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period in India where the Company operates

and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.

iy




Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31,2020

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

f. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at the cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to
acquisition and installation less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises
the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use
and initial estimate of restoration liabilities. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. The present value of the expected cost for the restoration of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in regular intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as separate component of assets. When an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is
de-recognised from the balance sheet and cost of the new item of PPE is recognised. Further, in case the replaced
part was not being depreciated separately, the cost of the replacement is used as an indication to determine the cost
of the replaced part at the time it was acquired.

§




Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation is provided on straight line method on a pro-rata basis from the date of use. The rates of depreciation
are based on technical evaluation of the economic life of assets by the management, which are given below and are
equal to or greater than the corresponding rates prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013:

Property, plant and equipment: Economic life (Years):
Leasehold improvement Lower of 15 years or lease period
Furniture and Fixtures

- Restaurants 8 years

- Office 10 years

Restaurant equipments

- Kitchen equipments 10 years

- Other equipments 5 years

Office equipments 5 years

Computers 3 years

Servers and networks 6 years

(Included in Computers in Note 3)

Vehicles 8 years

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at-least
as at each reporting date to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effect of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual values
and / or depreciation method are accounted prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated over the
PPE’s remaining revised useful life.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is disposed.

g. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. An
intangible asset is recognized, where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will
flow to the enterprise and where its cost can be reliably measured. The Company capitalises software costs where it
is reasonably estimated that the software has an enduring useful life. The Company capitalises one-time initial
franchisee fees paid for opening of each store.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. There are no intangible assets assessed
with indefinite useful life.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.




Burger King india Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis as follows:

Intangible assets: Economic life (Years)
Software 5 years
Franchisee fees Over the remaining term of Master Franchisee Agreement

Gains or losses arising from the de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognised.

h. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, deferred lease components of
security deposits and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Right-of-Use Leasehold Restaurants and Restaurant Equipments are amortised over a period of lease term,

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. in addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the
;.Ethgeriying asset.
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2016, the Company has determined whether the arrangement
contains lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of restaurant and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment’s that are low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense in statement of profit and loss.

i. Inventories

Inventories (comprising of food, beverages, condiments, paper & packing materials) are valued at lower of cost
(determined on first in first out basis) or net realisable value. However, materials and other items held for use the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated
are expected to be sold at or above cost. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Jj- Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash - generating unit's (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are la rgely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. The
Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.
i




Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

k. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or
all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liability

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. The Company
does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined Contribution plan

State governed Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance Corporation are considered as defined contribution
plan and contributions thereto are charged to the statement of profitand loss for the year when an employee renders
the related service. There are no other obligations, other than contribution payable to the respective funds.

Defined Benefit plan

Gratuity
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under this plan is determined on the basis

of an actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary on the projected unit credit method at the end of each
financial year. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains, are recognised immediately in the balance Sheet with
a corresponding charge or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. For the purpose
of presentation of defined benefit plan, allocation between short term and long term provision is made as determined

by an actuary.

Leave Encashment

Accumulated leaves, which are expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, are treated as current employee
benefit. The Company treats the entire leave as current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. It is measured on the basis of an
actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary on the projected unit credit method at the end of each financial

year.
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Burger King India Limited {formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

m. Share - based payments

Senior executives of the company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (eq uity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the company’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised

for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

n. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (d) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OC|, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

e ——
o I

N
Y

N \‘-\\I




Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31,2020

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
»  Debt instruments at amortised cost
> Debt instruments at fair value through other com prehensive income (FVTOCI)
»  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
»  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FEVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in
other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an
Bsirument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to P&L, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:
¢ Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
* Financial assets measured at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

For trade receivables, other receivables and other financial assets, the Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for
recognition of impairment loss allowance.

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For assessing increase
in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit
risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.




Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31,2020

Subsequent measurement

The Company measures all financial liabilities at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate ('EIR') method except
for financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financia! liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

0. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and,which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

p. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of
an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share
during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of
shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects

of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

g. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit/ loss before tax is adjusted for the effects transactions
of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated. Cash and cash
equivalents in the cash flow comprise cash at bank, cash/ cheques in hand and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.

r. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

2.3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, are mentioned below:

a) Useful lives of Property, Plant and equipment

Useful life and residual value are determined by the management based on a technical evaluation considering nature
of asset, past experience, estimated usage of the asset, vendor’s advice, period of underlying lease term etc and same
is reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. Management reviews the useful economic lives atleast
once a year and any changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying values.
The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, for possible impairment if there
are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable. In
assessing the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for impairment, factors leading to significant
reduction in profits, the Company’s business plans and changes in regulatory/ economic environment are taken into
consideration.

b) Provision for decommissioning

The Company has recognised a provision for site restoration obligation associated with the stores opened. In
determining the fair value of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, the
expected cost to dismantle and remove the furniture/fixtures from the stores and the expected timing of those costs.
The Company estimates that the costs would be realised upon the expiration of the lease and calculates the provision
using the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method.
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

¢) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases attrition
rates and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
post-employment benefit obligation. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 33.

d) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the
CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extra polation purposes.

e) Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details about Deferred tax assets are given in note 31.
f) Lease Term
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to

terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of restaurant and equipment due to
the significance of these assets to its operations and also investments made in leasehold improvements.

g) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

Refer Note 45 to the financial statements.




Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

2.4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(i) Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’

The Company applied Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as to a result of
adoption of this new accounting standard is described below.

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the full retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application
of April 1, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has disclosed balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 as comparative.

Further, as per option available under Ind AS 116, the Company has opted to disclose lease liability as a separate line

item on the face of balance sheet.

The effect of adopting Ind AS 116 for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:

Impact on the financial position is given the table below (increase/(decrease) :-

| Particulars / Balance Sheet Impact As at As at | As at ‘
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
| Assets ) _ B
Right-of-use-assets 5,379.50 4,292.25 3,433.47 |
Deferred lease rent (256.58) (201.31) (155.61) ‘
Total Assets 5,122.92 4,090.94 3,277.86
] Equity
Retained Earnings (854.55) (649.26) (422.38) |
Total Equity (854.55) (649.26) | (422.38) |
Liabilities _ | ‘
Non-current lease liabilities 5,665.48 4,508.38 3,522.84
Current lease liabilities 311.99 231.82 177.40
| Total liabilities 5,977.47 | 4,740.20 | 3,700.24 |
Impact on Statement of profit and loss account is given in the table below (increase/(decrease):-
| Particulars | March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019 |
| Finance Cost 585.33 462.01 |
' Depreciation and Amortisation on Right of Use assets 540.69 427.33 ‘
Other Expense (863.62) (662.44) |
Loss after tax 262.40 226.90 |
I Deferred tax assets impact on above adjustments 66.05 70.77
Deferred tax recognised in the financial statements on the -

above adjustments (*)

*The Company neither has any taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that could
partly support the recognition of deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Company has determined that it cannot
recognise deferred tax assets on the impact of Ind AS 116. Also, refer note 31 on deferred tax assets.




Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Impact on statement of cash flows increase/(decrease): -

| Particulars March 31,2020 |  March 31,2019 |
Net cash flows from operating activities 310.00 177.29
Net cash flows from financing activities {310.00) (177.29)

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases for
which it is the lessee. The Company recognised lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets. In accordance with the full retrospective method of adoption, the
Company applied Ind AS 116 at the date of initial application as if it had already been effective at the commencement
date of existing lease contracts.

As at March 31, 2020:

Right-of-use asset are recognised and presented separately in the statement of financial position.
Lease liabilities are recognised in accordance with Ind AS 116 and shown as financial liabilities
Deferred lease payments related to leases are reclassified to Right-of-Use assets.

Retained Earnings has decreased due to impact of Ind AS 116 adjustments.

For year ended March 31, 2020:

Depreciation expense increased because of recognition of additional assets (i.e., increase in right-of-use assets).
‘Other expenses’ relating to operating leases existing as on April 1, 2016, have decreased, because of recognition of
finance expenses as per ind AS 116.

Cash outflows from operating activities and investing activities increased and cash outflows from financing activities
decreased by the same amount, because of recognition of finance expenses as per Ind AS 116 instead of rent
expenses.
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Burger King India Limited {formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 4 : Right-of-use assets

Gross carrying amount
At April 1, 2018
Additions

Disposals

At March 31, 2019
Additions*

Disposals

At March 31, 2020

*net off remeasurements

Accumulated depreciation

At April 1, 2018

Add : Depreciation for the year
Less : Disposals

At March 31, 2019
Depreciation for the year
Disposals

At March 31, 2020

Net Book Value
At March 31, 2020
At March 31, 2019
At April 1, 2018

Note 5 : Intangible assets

Cost

At April 1, 2018
Add: Additions
Less: Disposals

At March 31, 2019
Additions
Disposals

At March 31, 2020

Amortization

At April 1, 2018
Amortization for the year
Disposals

At March 31, 2019
Amortization for the year
Disposals

At March 31, 2020

Net Book Value
At March 31, 2020
At March 31, 2019
At April 1, 2018
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INR in Millions

Right-of-use Leasehold Right-of-use Total

Restaurants Restaurant
Eguipments

4,032.09 105.67 4,137.76
1,228.22 57.89 1,286.11
5,260.31 163.56 5,423.87
1,603.06 69.67 1,672.73
59.33 0.45 59.78
6,804.04 232.78 7,036.82
689.49 14.80 704.29
415.61 11.72 427.33
1,105.10 26.52 1,131.62
524,19 16.50 540.69
14.85 0.14 14.99
1,614.44 42.88 1,657.32
5,189.60 189.90 5,379.50
4,155.21 137.04 4,292.25
3,342.60 90.87 3,433.47

Computer - Software Franchise Rights Total
26.88 78.74 105.62
10.98 72.20 83.18
37.86 150.94 188.80
5.26 99.84 105.10
43.12 250.78 293.90
12.20 5.44 17.64
7.30 594 13.24
19.50 11.38 30.88
6.75 11.26 18.01
26.25 22.64 48.89
16.87 228.14 245,01
18.36 139.56 157.92
14.68 73.30 87.98




Burger King India Limited (formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 6 : Non-current financial assets - Loans (unsecured, considered good)

{carried at amortised cost)

March 31, 2020

Security Deposits - Premises and Other Deposits
Considered good 280.06
Considered doubtful- credit impaired 0.10
Less : Allowance for doubtful deposits- credit impaired (0.10)
Loan to employees 10.89
290.95

- No Loans are due from directors or promoters of the Company either severally or jointly with any person.

Note 7 : Non-current financial assets - Others (unsecured, considered good) March 31, 2020

(Carried at amortised cost)

Bank Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months* 0.87
0.87

*Above deposits are given against bank guarantees issued to government authorities.

Note 8 : Other non-current assets (unsecured, considered good}
March 31 2020

UL T

Capital advances 20.87
Prepaid expenses 12,26
33.13
Note 9 : Inventories (at lower of cost or net realisable value)
March 31, 2020
Food, beverages & condiments §7.43
Paper & packaging material 6.91
94.34

Note:

March 31, 2019

213.08

213.08

March 31, 2019

0.62
0.62

March 31, 2019
39.02
0.43
39.45

March 31 2019
52.83
15.73

68.56

INR in Millions

April 1, 2018

161.40

161.40

April 1, 2018

0.30
0.30

April 1, 2018
18.93

18.93

April 1, 2018
37.31

1457
51.88

Amount of write down of inventories in the statement of profit and loss as an exceptional expense in current year is INR 16.03 millien (March 31, 2019: NIL, March 31, 2018: NIL) (Refer Note 44)

Note 10 : Current financial assets - Investments

March 31, 2020 March 31 2019 April 1, 2018

Units INR in Millions Units INR in Millions Units INR in Millions
Investments in Quoted Mutual Funds: (fully paid)
Investments at fair value through Profit & Loss
Reliance Prime Debt Fund - Growth Plan - Growth Option - IPGP {Cost- Mar 31 2020: NIL,
Mar 31, 2019: NIL; Apr 1, 2018: INR 27.61 million) - - 862,898 31.44
Ultra - Money Market Fund- Growth Plan (Cost- Mar 31 2020: NIL, March 31, 2019: NIL;
April 1, 2018: INR 15.28 million}) - 7,981 15.48
Kotak Low Duration Fund Standard Growth (Regular Plan) (Cost- Mar 31 2020: NIL, March
31, 2019: NIL; April 1, 2018: INR 300.00 million) - - 151,474 321.60
ICICI Prudential - Uitra Short Term Fund - Growth (Cost- Mar 31 2020: NIL, March 31, 2019:
NIL; April 1, 2018: INR 250.00 million) - - 15,269,227 267.76
Aditya Birla Sun Life Fund Quarterly Plan - Series 1 growth — regular plan (Cost- Mar 31 - - - 8,517,200 191.52
2020: NIL, March 31, 2019: NIL; April 1, 2018: INR 190.00 million)
Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Growth Regular Plan (Cost: Mar 31 2020: INR 32.45 87,455 34.77 332,324 122.67 -
million; March 31, 2019: INR 122.00 million; April 1, 2018: NIL)
Kotak Savings Fund - Growth (Regular Plan) (Cost: Mar 31 2020: NIL; March 31, 2019: INR 3,355,063 100.56
100.00 miltion; April 1, 2018: NIL) - - - -
HDFC Ultra Short term Fund - Regular Growth (Cost: Mar 31 2020: NIL; March 31, 2019: INR 9,613,998 100.53
100.00 million; April 1, 2018: NIL) - - - -
SBI Savings Fund (Cost: Mar 31 2020: NIL; March 31, 2019: INR 50.17 million; April 1, 2018: - - 1,742,079 5041 - -
UTI Short Term Income Fund - Growth Plan {Cost: Mar 31 2020: NIL; March 31, 2019: INR - 443,040 9.97 1,946,863 41.12
7.38 million; March 31, 2018: INR 32.41 million} -
Nippon India Liquid fund {Cost- Mar 31 2020: INR 67.50 million; March 31, 2019: Nil; April 1, 14,953 67.53 - - - -
2018: Nif)
Uti Liquid Fund -Cash Plan (Cost- Mar 31 2020: INR 83.42 million; March 31, 2019: Nil; April 25,779 83.46 - - - -
1, 2018: Nil)

185.76 384.14 868.92
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Burger King India Limited {formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 11 : Trade and other receivables (unsecured, considered good) INR in Millions
{Carried at amortised cost)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Related parties (Unsecured, considered good) 0.14 - C.36
Others (Unsecured, considered good) 32.06 58.98 25.49
Others- credit impaired (Unsecured, considered doubtful) 2.48 2.63 -
Less : Allowance for doubtful balances - credit impaired (2.48) 12.63)

32.20 58.98 25.85

Note:
1. No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Note 12 : Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Balances with banks

In current accounts 24.58 118.67 49.49
Cash on hand 15.96 39.88 22.55

40.54 158.55 72.04

Note 13 : Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and remaining maturity less than 12 mont 239.90 1.61 1.86

239.90 1.61 1.86

*Above deposits includes deposits given against bank guarantees issued to government authorities. Out of the total deposits outstanding as on March 31, 2020: INR 47.30 Million (March 31, 2018:
NIL, April 1, 2018: NIL) is secured against term loan.

Note 14 : Other financial assets - current (unsecured, considered good)
(Carried at amortised cost}

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Income receivables 12.31 29.69 13.32
12.31 29.69 13.32
Note 15 : Other current assets
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Prepaid expenses 3273 36.92 12.63
Advance to suppliers 79.89 45.83 22.37
Advance to employees 2.15 167 1.60
Share issue expenses (to the extent not written off)* 78.30 - -
Balances with government authorities
Considered good 1.10 29.53 2022
Considered doubtful 1041 11.35 54.73
Less : Allowance for doubtful balances with government authorities 110.41) 111.35 (54.73)
194.17 113.95 56.82
Note: T — —_—

*The Company has so far incurred share issue expenses of INR 78.30 million in connection with proposed public offer of equity shares. These expenses shall be adjusted against securities
premium as permissible under Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 on successful completion of Initial Public Offer (IPO). The entire amount has been carried forward and disclosed under the
head 'Other Current Assets' as Share issue expenses {to the extent of not written off or adjusted).

i\




000'S YN| UBY) SS8] JUNOWe S330Ua(
pred AjIny yoea OT ¥NJ 40 a1eys Alnb3
P31 "31d BISY YSO jo AuedwoD Suip|oH -

Ox 00T Ox 00t P 91 (s40deBuIS) SaINJUIA BISY 994
pied Al ysea QT ¥NI 40 s3.eys Alnb3
00°059'7 666666797 00059'C 666666792 Auedwo) uIp|oH - p1] 214 elsy ¥SO
SUOI||IW Ul UNI  8TOZ ‘T IUdy e sy  suoi||ilAl Ul YN| S3JBYS JO JaqUINN saJeys Jo JaquinN
8102 'T IMdv e sy 6T0T ‘TE Y2JeN 1e sy 0T0Z ‘T€ Y2Jen Je sy
$81e120Ss® /SALEIPISGNS Jiay3 Jo /pue Auedwod Suipjoy aewn /Buipjoy Aq pjay saJeys 'y
WLLL'T S8L'TVL'LLT 0702 'TE Y24BA IV
WLt S8LTPL'TT JeaA 343 Bulnp saBueyn
00059'C 000000592 6TOT “TE YN IV
- Jeah ay3 Sulinp saBuey)
00'059'C 000°000'59¢ 810Z 'T jHdv Y
SUOI||IIAL Ul UNI sIaqunN

00'0ST'T 000'00S‘TT
00°0ST'T 000'005'TT
000ST'T 000'00S'TT
SUOH||I Ul YNI SiaquinN
SaJeys aoualajald
00°006°€ 000'000'06€
00'000'T 000'000°00T
00°006'C 000'000'062
00'0ST 000°000'5Z
00059°C 000000592
SUOI|jiA UL YNI SiaquinN
sateys Ajinb3

pied Ajjny pue psqlIIsqns ‘panss| Yaes OT YN| 4O S3Jeys Aunba
|ende) panss|

'siapjoyadeys auy Aq piay saleys AJnba Jo Jaquinu sy 03 Uolodo.d Ul 3q (1M UOINGLISIP 2y “Aue
4l sjunowe jenuaJzya.d ||e Jo UONNGLISIP Ja)4e ‘Auedwo) 343 JO $135SE BUILIBUISI BAI923] O3 PIjILS 34
40 1U2AS BY3 Ul "PJaY 3deys Jad 3)cA BUO Jo) 3|

$21BYS AUNDS 4O s1aploy 3y ‘Auedwo) a3 yo uonepinby|

3 sl J3pjoyadeys yae3 dleys J3d OT'sy 4O anjeA Jed Buiney saleys AINba Jo ssej ajBuls B sey Auedwar ayl

saleys AYnba 01 paysene sysu fswuaj

0207 ‘T€ Yosew
JeaA 3y3 Bulinp aseaJou|

610C 'T€ Y2IeN 1Y
JeaA a3 Buunp asealou)

8107 ‘T (Mdy 1y

|eided a1eys asualaya.g pasUoyIny

0Z0Z ‘T€ Y2 Iy
JeaA ay3 Buunp asealou;

6107 'TE Yolen Iy

1e3A 3y3 BuLnp aseasau)

810 'T Udy 1y

|exdes aueys Ayinba pasiioyiny
|eude) aJeys Aunb3 : gT 230N

070Z ‘T€ UdJep papud Jesh ay) Jo) sjuswislels [elpueuy 40 Hed Bujwuoy sajoN
(,peuwWI a3eALld etpup upy Ja8ing, se umouy Alawicy) paywir] eipul Bury Jaging



"ue|d 32035 @aA0|dwia JapuUn $a9A0|dWS 0} panss| suondo Jo anjeA Jiey a1ep Jueld 3yl syussaidss 3aiasal JUDWARD /@Uﬁm‘m

Ym 30UEPIODIE Ul S3sodind paniwt) 4oy Ajuo pa

TE'T2C
€S'EST)
9T'€T)

f 1

(z1°52r'E)
118°S/£)
(T€'6¥9'2)
{05's8¢
(18'€92'7)
SUOJJJIA Ul YNI

88°0F
00'7¢€)
09°€E
8T'Tv
99°0T
29'0€
SUOI|ILA Ul Y¥NI

80'T9E'E
68'883

69°L1

05'vSP'T
0S'¥Sk'e
SUOIHIAL UL ANI

mE:E 7
e \

0\
\\.x_m:;ma paseq aJeys -z

St s U0 343 4O SUOISIACId E
1N 39 Ued sAIBSal 3y] "saJeys uo PoAIBd3) EJ_EWLQ sjuasadal anlasal EJ_EOLQ SOIUIN23G ¢ ED_Ew._n_ S$9l1INJBS T
{9AI3S3I JO aImeN

8107 ‘T |udy 1y
6TOT ‘TE YaIeN Iy
0Z0C 'T€ YeN Iy
Aunba Jayio |e30)

020Z ‘T€ YaIew 1y
1B2A 3y3 Bunp $50] AISUIYDIdWOI |B30 ) ppY

6TOT ‘TE Yade 1y
1234 343 Bunp sso| aAlsuaya.Idwod |e10] :ppy

8T0T ‘10 |udV Iy

sBululea pauieiey

020T 'TE YoieW 1Y
SUoRdO 4O 3512.49%2 U WNIWALd SIIWINISS 03 JBJSUE]] 553

Jesh ay] uoy sBuey) :ppy

610Z 'T€ Y2Je 1y
1eaA 341 Joy sBseyD :ppy

8T0T ‘T0 [Hdy 3y

aMn2sal JUaWARd paseq aleys

00T 'T€ Y2e 1Y
UOISIBAUOD §d3D) JO JUNOIIR UO I3JSUBI] PPy
BAJBS3S JUBWARd paseq aJeys WoU Jajsuel) :ppy

6T0T 'T€ YaIe 1y
8107 ‘T0 UdV Iy
wnjwald s3(3ndag

Aunba Jayip : 2T 810N

'S3JBYS JO SAIYSIBUMO [BIDY3USG pue (83

L10q sussaidal Bulpjoyaleys saoqe au1 152.33u] [eldyausy BUIPIRESI SI8POYIBYS WO PRAIIAS SUOIIEIE|I3P JYI0 pue siaguiaL/siaployaieys yo ia3siFad s) Suipnjoul ‘Auedwon ay3 4o spiodal Jad sy

%66'66 666'666'79T %66'66 66666679 %1¥'66 OTT'TIT'9LL
%66'66 666'666'797 %6666 666666797 %1V'66 OTTTTI1'9LZ Auedwo? Buip|oH - P17 314 BISY ¥SD
Auip|oH % S3JBYS JO JaquinN uip|oH % SBJBYS 4O Jaquny BuIp|oH % SaJeys Jo Jaquinn
810T ‘T |ludy 3e sy 6TOT ‘TE Yode je sy 0Z0T ‘TE YaUe 18 sy

Auedwiod 3y3 Ul s31BYS %S Uey) 30w Bulp(oy sJap|oyaJeys 4o s|1e13Q °g

0Z0T "TE Y24BlA Papua Jeak ay) 104 SJUBWRIEIS |eloueuly JO Wed BUjLIO) S10N
(P 1AL elpul Bury JaBing, se umouy AlJawio}) pauwi eipy) Bugy se8ing



Burger King India Limited (formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

INR in Millions
Note 18 : Borrowings
Non current borrowings
(Carried at Amortised cost) March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 Aprit 1, 2018
Term loan:
Rupee |oan from Bank {Secured) (Refer note (i} below)” 1,787.87 - -
1,787.87 - -
Current borrowings
(Carried at Amortised cost)
Bank overdraft (Secured) {Refer Note {ii) below} 197.29 - -
{Carried at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss)
8% Compulsory Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) (Unsecured) (Refer Note (iii} below) - 1,000.00 -
197.29 1,000.00 -
(i}
Particulars Interest Maturity* Security
Term Loan - INR 1,500 miilion |-MCLR-1Y+"Spread" 3 Quarterly instalments of INR 75 million each from  |(i) First pari passu charge on of al! assets
February 13, 2022 to August 13, 2022 including moveable and immovable fixed
assets, current assets including bank
accounts, receivables, inventory, present
and future of the Borrower
4 Quarterly instalments of INR 93.5 million each from [{ii) First pari passu charge on hypothecation
November 13, 2022 to August 13, 2023 on intangibles goodwill and uncalled capital
of the Borrower
8 Quarterly instalments of INR 112.5 million each (iii) First pari passu charge on the Current
from November 13, 2023 to August 13, 2025 Account/ Escrow Account and DSRA
Account and all monies credited/deposited
therein{in whatever form the same may be),
and all investments in respect thereof (in
whatever form the same may be)
Term Loan - INR 310 millien |-MCLR-1Y+"Spread" 3 Quarterly instalments of 25.82 million each from {1} First pari passu charge on of all assets

September 30, 2021 to March 31, 2022

4 Quarterly instalments of 7.75 million each for
Financial year 2022-23

8 Quarterly instalments of 3.88 million each from
Financial year 2023-24 to Financial year 2024-25

4 Quarterly instalments of 42.63 million each for
Financial year 2025-26

including moveable and immovable fixed
assets, current assets including bank
accounts, receivables, inventory, present

and future of the Borrower
(ii) First pari passu charge on hypothecation

on intangibles goodwill and uncalled capital
of the Borrower

(iit) First pari passu charge on the Current
Account/ Escrow Account and DSRA
Account and all monies credited/deposited
therein(in whatever form the same may be),
and all investments in respect thereof (in
whatever form the same may be)

Effective rate of interest as on March 31, 2020 for Term Loan- INR 1,500 million and INR 600 million is 9.73% and 10.12% respectively
Effective rate of interest as on March 31, 2020 for bank overdraft is 9.55% (I-MCLR-6M+"Spread" of 1.45% p.a.)
*The amounts mentioned are grossed up to the extent of unamortised processing fees

*Net of unamortised processing fees for year ended March 31, 2020 of INR 22.13 miillion

(in)

The Company has availed bank overdraft facility (repayable on demand) which is secured by:

(1) By way of hypothecation /mortgage of all assets including moveable and immovable fixed assets, current assets including bank accounts, receivables, inventory, present and future of the

Borrower
(2) By way of hypothecation on intangibles goodwill and uncalled capital of the Borrower

(3) The Current and Escrow account (in whatever form the same may be), and all investments in respect therecf (in whatever form the same may be);

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Beginning of the year 1,000.00 - -
Cash inflows {net) 2,007.29 1,000.00 -
Unamortised processing fees (22.13) -
CCPS converted into equity shares (Refer Note iii) {1,000.00)
End of the year 1,985.16 1,000.00 -

(i) Note for CCPS:

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company issued 10 million CCPS of INR 100 each fully paid-up. CCPS carry non-cumulative dividend @ 8% p.a. CCPS shall be entitled to dividend, if
declared by the Company, at the end of every financial year on non- cumulative basis. Each holder of CCPS is entitled to one vote per share only on resolutions placed before the company

which directly affect the rights attached to CCPS,

CCPS were compulsorily convertible into equity shares at the sole discretion of the shareholder at any time within a period of 20 years from the date of issuance at the Fair Market Value as
at the date of conversion subject to minimum valuation of floor price mentioned in the terms of CCPS and in accordance with the applicable laws.
In the event of liquidation of the company before conversion of CCPS, the holders of CCPS will have priority over equity shares in the payment of dividend and repayment of capital.

CCPS was classified as flnanC|aI I|ab|||ty as at March 31, 2019 based on assessment of the terms and conditions as per ind AS 32. During the year ended March 31, 2020, CCPS were converted

into equity shares.
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as ‘Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

INR in Millions
Note 19 : Provisions
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Non-current provisions
Gratuity (Refer note 33) 33.62 16.65 8.88
Site restoration liability {Refer note below) 153.66 35.13 24.36
187.28 51.78 33.24
Note:
The Company records a provision for site restoration liability associated with the stores opened
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Beginning of the year 35,13 24.36 18.49
Additions during the year* 121.25 10.77 6.87
Deletions during the year 12.72) - 11.00
End of the year 153.66 35.13 24.36
* Includes amount of INR Million 6.27 Million due to change in estimate for March 31, 2620 (March 31, 2019: INR NiL, April 1, 2018: INR NIL)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Current provisions
Gratuity (Refer note 33) 1.36 0.33 0.03
Leave benefits 31.52 23.48 17.00
32.88 23.81 17.03
Note 20 : Other non-current liabilities
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Income received in advance (Contract Liabilities) 8.16 7.86 7.33
8.16 7.86 7.33

:V%C&Qa
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 21 : Trade payables

Micre and small enterprises*
Others

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of year:

(a) Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

(b) Interest due on above

{c) The armount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006.

{e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of year

{f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

INR in Millions
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
5.35 - -
810.67 609.00 434.11
816.02 609.00 434.11
5.35 - -

* Micro and small enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

information available with the Company.

Note 22 : Other financial liabilities- Current
(Carried at amortised cost)

Payable to capital vendors
Retention Money Payable
Note 23 : Other current liabilities

Income received in advance ( Contract Liabilities )
Statutory dues

o /BRI

(1R e 4\
| Vol
\

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
107.53 193.78 138.62
45.98 28.37 18.77
153.51 222.15 157.39

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
1.36 1.32 4.05
60.97 52.13 78.85
62.33 53.45 82.90




Burger King India Limited {formerly known as 'Burger King india Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 24 : Revenue from coperations

INR in Millions

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2018

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Revenue recognised at the point of time

Income from Sale of food and beverages 8,353.23
Revenue recognised over the period of time
Income from sub franchisee operations 29.51

6,285.86

22.93

B8382.74

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Cther Operating income

6,308.75

Scrap Sales 29.64 18.56
Total revenue from operations 8412.38 6.327.35
Contract liabilities
The Company has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Contract liabilities (Refer note 20 & 23) 9.52 9.18

Contract liabilities includes payments received in advance of performance under the contract,

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Revenue recognised in the year from:
Amounts included in contract liability at the beginning of the year 1.32

1.01

Contract liability relates to payments received in advance of performance under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as (or when) the Company

performs under the contract.

Note 25 ; Other income

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Interest income on Fixed deposits 1.74 0.22
MTM Gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss 2.24 462
Profit on sale of investments 8.47 25.28
Rental income 051 1.63
Interest income on security deposits 17.66 16.37
Provisions written back 1.09 64.92
Gain on termination of lease 9.43
Gain on remeasurement of lease 14.15 -
Miscellaneous income 0.62 0.91
55.91 113.95

Note 26 : Cost of materials consumed

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Food, beverages, condiments , paper and packaging materials

Inventory at the beginning of the year 68.56 51.88
Add: Purchases 3,040.68 2,317.52
Less: inventory at the end of the year 194.34, 68.56!
3,014.90 2,300.84

Detalls of materials consumed
Food, beverages and condiments 2,793.00 2,091.77
Paper & packing material 221.90 209.07
S 3.014.90 2,300.84

7 N



Burger King India Limited (formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 27 : Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds {net of government grant under PMRPY* of INR 17 43 Million

(March 31, 2019: INR 16.25 Million)}

Employee stock compensation expense (refer note 35)
Gratuity expense (refer note 33)

Staff welfare expense

*PMRPY stands for Pradhan Mantri Rojgar Protsahan Yojana
Note 28 : Finance costs

Interest expense
-onterm loan

- on lease liability
- others

Note 29 : Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of Right of use assets

Note 30 : Other expenses

Rent

Power and Fuel

Rates & Taxes

QOperating Supplies

Advertising and Marketing Expenses

Consultancy & Professional Fees (Refer Note (i) below)
Telephone and communication expenses

Travelling expenses

Director's sitting fees

Insurance

Repairs and Maintenance - Leasehold Improvements
Repairs and Maintenance - Restaurant Equipments
Repairs and Maintenance - Others

Royalties Fees

Allowance for doubtful receivables

Allowance for doubtful deposits

Write off of Property, plant and equipment {net) {refer note {ii) below)
Commission & Delivery expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

i} Note :
Payments to the auditor:

As auditor
Audit fee*
Tax audit fee

In other capacity:
Other services#
Reimbursement of expenses

INR in Millions

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

1,154.51 834.95
96.78 60.57
27.05 7.80

8.82 5.37
77.87 59.90
1365.03 968.59

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

53.43 -
585.33 462,01

15.77 2.49
654.53 464.50

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2018

605.04 38153
18.01 13.24
540.69 427.33
1,163.74 822.10

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

380.69 269.60
703.70 472.25
33.21 24.25
123.21 87.28
487.28 535.46
70.17 65.12
18.40 14.36
54.78 4498

0.89 -
5.56 4.93
€9.30 48.68
18.06 8.07
14551 103.18
343.36 235.86
2,63

0.10

6.89 112
458.71 294,00
72.52 56.27
2,992.34 2,268.06

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

6.80 2.80
0.40 0.35
10.20 1.05
0.34 0.10
17.74 4.30

* The amount disclosed for the year ended March 31, 2020 includes INR 3.00 Millicn shown as share issue expenses under the head Other Current Assets in Note 15
# The amount disclosed for the year ended March 31, 2020 includes INR 10.20 Million shown as share issue expenses under the head Other Current Assets in Note 15

i} Note :

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has written off INR 6.04 Million (net) (March 31, 2019: INR Nil) representing written down value of lease hold

improvements installed at stores upon closure.

<
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Burger King India Limited {formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited")

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
INR in Millions

Note 32: Earnings per share {EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the period plus the

weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
The following refiects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Loss attributable to equity holders:
Continuing operations 1765.70] 1382.79]
Loss attributable to equity holders for basic earnings (765.70] (382.79)
Loss attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS 267,216,440 265,000,000
Effect of dilution:

Share options under ESOP and 8% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares {ccps)a 12,261,446 31,074,372
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 279,477,886 296,074,379
Basic EPS {in INR) (2.87) (1.44]
Diluted EPS {in INR} [2.87) {1.44

Potential equity shares are anti dilutive and hence the effect of anti dilutive potential equity shares is ignored in calculating diluted earning per share.
ACurrent year number does not include CCPS post dilution i.e. 28th Feb, 2020

Note 33 : Employee Benefits

(a) Defined Contribution Plans
The Company has recognised following amounts as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss :

March 31, 2020 March 31 2019
Contribution to provident and other funds 96.78 60.57
96.78 60.57

(b} Defined Benefit Plans

(i) Gratuity :
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit scheme. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The
level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The Gratuity liability is unfunded.

The cost of providing benefits under this plan is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation done.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows :

Gratuity
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018

I Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year

1. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 16.98 8.90 8.35

2. Interest cost 1.15 0.64 0.59

3. Current service cost 7.67 4.73 8.12

4. Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer (0.93) -

5. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - (6.32)

6. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 4.50 0.71 (0.09)

7. Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 5.61 2.00 11.75]

8. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 34.98 16.98 8.90
Il Net lability recognised in the balance sheet

1. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 34.98 16.98 8.90

2. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -

3. Net liability recognised in balance sheet 34.98 16.98 8.90
lll Expenses recognised In the statement of profit and loss for the year

1, Current service cost 7.67 4.73

2. Interest cost on benefit obligation 1.15 0.64

3. Total expenses included in employee benefits expense 8.82 5.37
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

IV Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
1. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions
2. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions
3. Actuarial changes arising fram changes in experience adjustments
4. Recognised in other comprehensive income

V Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
1st following year
2nd following year
3rd following year
4th following year
Sth following year
Sums of years 6 to 10

VI Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:
1. Increase/(decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year
(i) One percentage point increase in discount rate
{ii) One percentage point decrease in discount rate
{i) One percentage point increase in rate of salary increase
(ii) One percentage point decrease in rate of salary Increase
(i) One percentage point increase in employee turnover rate
(i) One percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate

2. Sensitivity Analysis Method

INR in Millions
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
4.50 071
5.61 2.00
10.11 271
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1.36 0.33
1.90 0.86
2.38 1.22
2.84 1.50
3.19 1.75
11.70 7.11

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

(3.53)
4.30
4,19

{3.51)

{1.12)
124

(1.62)
1.93
191

(1.63)

(0.39)
0.41

The sensitivity analysis is determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the year, while holding other assumptions constant.

Vi Actuarial assumptions
1. Discount rate
2. Satary escalation

3. Mortality rate during employment

4. Mortality post retirement rate
5. Rate of Employee Turnover

6. Retirement age

Notes :

{i) The actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at March 31, 2020. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service

cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
5.45% 6.76%
7.00% 7.00%

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08}
N.A
Operations :-
Service <5 yrs - 35%
Service <= 10 yrs - 15%
Service >= 11 yrs - 5%
RSC:~
Service <5yrs - 15%
Service >= 5 yrs - 5%

58 years

Indian assured lives
mortality (2006-08)
N.A
QOperations :-
Service <5 yrs - 35%
Service <= 10 yrs - 15%
Service >= 11 yrs - 5%
RSC:-
Service <5 yrs - 15%
Service >= 5 yrs - 5%

58 years

(ii) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.
{iii) The salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such as, demand and supply in employment market.
{iv) The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at March 31, 2020 is 13 years {March 31, 2019: 12 years, April 1, 2018: 12 years).

Apri1,2018
7.18%

7.00%
Indian assured lives
mortality (2006-08)
N.A

Service < 4 yrs - 35%
Service >4 and <=10 yrs
-15%

Servive > 10 yrs - 5%

58 years

Cﬁ



Burger King India Limited {formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

INR In Millions

Note 34 : Related party transactions

Names of related parties and related party relationshio

Related parties where control exists
Holding company

Holding company of QSR Asia Pte. Ltd.
Ultimate Holding Company

QSR Asia Pte. Ltd.
F&B Asia Ventures (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
F&B Asia Ventures Ltd. {Mauritius)

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the vear

Harry's India Private Limited
Pan India Food Solutions Private Limited {upto April 25, 2018}

Feliow Subsidiary

Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel/
shareholders or their relatives isfare able to exercise
significant influence

Key management personnel

Mr. Rajeev Varman (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Shivakumar Pullaya Dega {Independent Director) {w.e.f Oct 14, 2019}
Mrs. Tara Subramaniam {Independent Director) {w.e.f Oct 14, 2019}

Mr. Sandeep Chaudhary (Independent Director} (w.e.f. Oct 14, 2019}

Directors

Mr.Tanmay Kumar {Uptill Aug 8, 2019}
Mr. Sumit Zaveri (w.e.f Sep 23, 2019}
Ms. Ranjana Saboo (Uptill Aug 31, 2020)

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary*
* The Company is in the process of appointing a full time Company Secretary

Transactions with related parties

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Issue of 8% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares to related party#t
QSR Asia Pte Ltd - 1,000.00
# Converted into equity shares during year ended March 31, 2020
(b) Rent Received
Harry's India Private Limited 0.51 1.63
{c) Remuneration to Key management personnel *
Mr. Rajeev Varman 40.66 26.29
Mr. Tanmay Kumar 5.74 18.93
Ms. Ranjana Saboo 4.09 5.01
Mr. Sumit Zaveri 815 -
Above remuneration Includes:
Compensation of key management personnel of the Company
Short-term employee benefits 0.12 0.81
Post-employment gratuity 0.22 048
Share-based payment transactions 12.06 2.75
*The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel.
(d) Directors' sitting fees
Mrs. Tara Subramaniam 0.35 -
Mr. Shivakumar Pullaya Dega 0.30 -
Mr Sandeep Chaudhary 0.24 -
(e} Outstanding balances with related parties
(a) Advance for expense
Rajeev Varman 0.11
(b) Other Receivables
Harry's India Private Limited 0.14 -
() Trade Payables
Pan India Food Solutions Private Limited 0.04
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

INR in Millions
Note 36 : Commitments and contingencies
a. Commitments :Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2015
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances) 150.08 114.05

b. Contingent Liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities as on the Balance Sheet date.

c. The Company believes that there is no impact of retrospective applicability of the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on definition of basic wages for PF contributions.
The Company has complied with the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on prospective basis.

Note 37 : Segment Reporting

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the Company has been identified as Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company who evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by reportable segments. CODM reviews the entire operating results of the
business as a whole for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment and therefore, Company believes that there is single
reportable segment i.e. " Restaurants and Management". Segment performance is evaluated based on Profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in

the financial statement.
The Company operates only in India and hence all non current assets belong to repartable segment are located in india. The Company doesn't have any individual

customer who is contributing more than 10% of revenue.

Note 38 : Capitalization of pre-operative expenditure

During the period, the Company has capitalized the following expenses as pre-operative expenses under Property, Plant & Equipment. Consequently, expenses
disclosed under the respective notes are net of amounts capitalized by the Company.

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018

Salary, Bonus and Allowances 68.73 34.27 37.76
Stamp Duty & Registration Charges 7.51 3.45 3.56
Commission and Brokerage 4,44 3.62 2.22
Legal and Professional Fees 7.40 4.44 5.97
Power and Fuel 4.23 3.89 1.34
Rent 2,35 297 0.40
Miscellaneous Expenses 7.72 8.39 5.00
102.38 61.03 56.25

c
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited'}
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

INR in Millions
Note 42: Leases

Leases are shown as follows in the Company's balance sheet and profit & loss account

The Company has lease contracts for operational stores, corporate office and restaurant equipment’s used in its operations. The Company's cbligations under its leases are secured

by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

Right-of-Use Assets - : Lease hold March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Cost 6,804.04 5,260.31 4,032.09
Accumulated depreciation 1614.44 1105.10 689.49
Net carrying amount 5,185.60 4,155.21 3,342.60
Right-of-Use Assets - : Other Assets March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Cost 232.78 163.56 105.67
Accumulated depreciation 42.88 - 26.52 14.80
Net carrying amount 189.90 137.04 90.87
Lease liabilities - Borrowings March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
As at the beginning of the year 4,740.20 3,700.24 2,908.87
Additions (net off remeasurements) 1,547.28 1,217.25 908.16
Accretion of interest 585.33 462.01 366.51
Payments (837.43) (639.30) (484.30}
Deletions 57.91)

As at the end of the year 5977.47 4,740.20 3,700.24
Current 311.99 231.82 177.40
Non-current 5,665.48 4,508.38 3,522.84
Amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Other income

Operating lease income 0.51 1.63

Other Expenses

Variable lease rent expense 380.69 269.60

Depreciation and impairment losses

Depreciation of right of use lease asset 540.69 427.33

Finance cost

Interest expense on lease liability 585.33 462.01

Amount recognised in statement of cash flow

Tota! cash outflow for leases 895.34 639.30

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 Acril 1, 2018
As at the beginning of the year 4,740.20 3,700.24 2,909.87
New leases (net off remeasurements) 1,547.28 1,217.25 908.16
Cash outflaws (252.10) (177.29) (117.79)
Deletion (57.81) B -
As at the end of the year 5,977.47 4,740.20 3,700.24

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of INR 895.34 million, INR 639.30 million, INR 484.30 million for the years ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and April 1, 2018,

respectively.

The Company also had non-cash additions to Rights-of-use assets of INR 1,672.73 million, INR 1,286.10 million and INR 952,39 million for the years ended March 31, 2020, March 31,

2019 and April 1, 2018, respectively.

The Company also had nan-cash additions to lease liabilities of INR 1,547.28 million, INR 1,217.25 million and INR 908.16 million for the years ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019

and April 1, 2018, 2018, respectively.

Difference between ROU assets and lease habilities pertaining to new leases recorded on initial recognition represents initial. direct costs and deferred component of Security

deposits given to lessors.

Short term leases or leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of restaurant and equipment {i.e., those leasas that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 43: Going Concern

During the current year, the Company has incurred loss of INR 775.81 million. The accounts of the Company for the above periods have been prepared on the basis
of going concern, as the management is confident that the performance of the Company will improve in the upcoming years. Additionally, the Company has obtained
financial support from QSR Asia Pte. Ltd. through additional funding for meeting its operating and financial requirements and such support to enable the Company to
continue as a going concern for at least next twelve months commencing from March 31, 2020. The Company is therefore considered as a going concern and
accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared based on going concern assumption.

Note 44: Exceptional items
The Company operates in QSR Segment, its inventory includes food items which are perishable in nature. Based on the situation of COVID-19 resulting in overall

decline in customer frequencies, the Company has provided for write off of food inventory and related commitments amounting to Rs. 43.45 million for the year
ended March 31, 2020.

Note 45: Covid-19
The World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic in March 2020. Consequently, Government of India declared a nation-wide lockdown with

effect from March 24, 2020, which caused significant disruption in economic activity and has impacted the business activities and lives of the people. In view of the
COVID- 19 outbreak such as complete lockdown of states, brought economic activity to a standstill affecting our restaurant traffic as well which is no exception for
industry as a whole. During the trying times our priorities are to serve most hygienic and safe food to our customers.

The Company has assessed the impact of this pandemic on its business operations and has considered all relevant information available up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, in determination of the recoverability of its all its non-current and current assets and recognised necessary adjustments to carrying values
of these assets. Further, given the uncertainties associated with nature, condition and duration of COVID -19, the impact assessment on the company's financial
statements will be continuously made and any material changes will be provided for as required.

Since Company operates in QSR Segment, its inventory includes food items which are perishable in nature. Based on the situation of COVID-19 resulting in overall
decline in customer frequencies, the Company has provided for write off of food inventory and related commitments amounting to Rs. 43.45 million for the year
ended March 31, 2020 (Refer Note 44).

Note 46: Standards issued but not yet effective
The new and amended standards that are notified, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The

Company intends to adopt these new and amended standards if applicable, when they become effective.

(i} Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendments to the definition of a business in Ind AS 103 help entities determine whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a business or not. They
clarify the minimum requirements for a business, remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing elements, add
guidance to help entities assess whether an acquired process is substantive, narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs, and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test.

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after the 1 April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period. Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or
other events that occur on or after the date of first application, the Company will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

(if} Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments to Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors align the definition
of ‘material’ across the standards and clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, ‘Information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial tatements.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. The amendments to the definition of material are not
expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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Burger King India Limited (formerly known as 'Burger King India Private Limited')
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(iii) Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are
directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging refationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainties about the timing and or amount of

benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entites are required to make for hedging relationships to which the reliefs as per the amendments in
Ind AS 109 are applied. These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. These amendments are not expected to have a

significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Burger King India Limited

ForSRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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Membership No: 49365 DIN: 00364444

Sumit Zaveri
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2020
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Director
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